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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B ¥ Z

Annual result for year ended 31 March 2009
e Turnover
e Profit before taxation
® Asat 31 March 2009
Contracts in hand
® Asat 31 March 2009
Shareholders’ fund

e Earnings per share

Turnover (HK$'000)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents)
Net asset value (HK$'000)

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Fair value change on derivative
financial instruments

Revaluation deficit on building

Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Dividends

Basic earnings per share
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HKS31Tm 0.31E%E T
HK$215m 2158 1
HKS$199m 1.99F8
HK11 cents 115840
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25,006 37,813
10.8 16.4

2.5 5.0
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139,129 150,907
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(32,368) (32,604)
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(112) -
(1,758) (1,217)
30,562 45,876
(5,556) (8,063)
25,006 37,813
8,085 15,500
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT *E & &
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Dear Shareholders

We are pleased to present the annual report for the year ended
31 March 2009.

As reported in my statement to you last year, the financial turmoil
has at last reached our shores. This year has been a challenging
year for the Group, we experienced the pressure of inflation
at the beginning of the year when the commodity price for
building material shot up and the volatile exchange rates require
management to be vigilant. The Gross Domestic Product of
Hong Kong declined by 7.8% in the first quarter of 2009 (*), the
sharpest decline since the third quarter of 1998. Despite various
measures to stimulate the economy, unless there is a significant
recovery worldwide and it is estimated a decrease of 5.5% to 6.5%
of GDP on annual basis. We remain cautious in respect of the
speed of recovery and have been equipping ourselves to weather
the tough economic situation.

It is said that “Every Cloud has a Silver Lining”. While the
Peoples’ Republic of China celebrates its 60th Anniversary, the
Country remains one of the few that expected to have positive
economic growth in the world, we are pleased to note that
our China operation is promised with a significant increase
in activities in Shanghai. The efforts in promoting our China
operations have resulted in expansion of business volume in
the following financial year in the mainland and particularly its
largest city — Shanghai. China Government has committed to
make Shanghai one of the financial centres of the Mainland,
boosting it financial services to serve the Region and the Country
at large, this is also fuelled by the World Expo to be held in the
City in 2010, as a result, the sprouting of building projects is
likely to redraw the skyline of Shanghai. We further report that
we shall be upgrading ourselves not only as a trader, but also an
active participant as an interior decorator, fitting our products to
Residential, Commercial and Hotel projects in the area.

*  Census and Statistics Department B 5 #; 51 5
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As at 31 March 2009, our contracts in hand have achieved over
HK$200 million in total, setting a new record in our corporate
history. Meanwhile our kitchen fittings to luxurious houses in
Hong Kong and a drive from kitchen to living room concept
continue, we are hopeful that our new branch of business
activities in China will be making positive contribution to the
Group’s result in future.

With the continuous support of our loyal workforce, and most
importantly, you, dear shareholders, ‘We Are Ready!” We are
ready to take on challenges; we are ready in riding through the
economic turmoil; we are ready in expanding our presence in
China; we are ready in further developing our business in Hong
Kong.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
. Chairman
3 June 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & # /g 55 & 8 2 #7

The following discussion provides information and contribution
to revenue, operating profit, profit after tax, financial condition,
liquidity and capital expenditure of the Group.

Results of Operations

We announce an operating profit of HK$30.6 million (2008:
HK$45.9 million) a decrease of 33%, while profit after tax
amounts to HK$25.0 million (2008: HK$37.8 million) a decrease
of 34% with the Group turnover amounts to HK$361.1 million
(2008: HK$395.3 million) lowered by 8.65% from last year.

As mentioned previously in our interim report for the six months
ended 30 September 2008, the financial turmoil triggered by
the sub prime crisis in the United States of America does affect
Hong Kong. The lower volume of sales in the second half of this
financial year was reflected by the slowing down of building
projects, however we have been able to maintain our gross
margin at 39% (2008: 38%) and administrative expenses at
HK$32.4 million (2008: HK$32.6 million), the selling and
distribution expenses only increased slightly to HK$76.0 million
(2008: HK$73.7 million) as a result of the increases in rental
expenses for our showrooms when leases were renewed in the
summer of 2008.
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Wholesales/Retails

The wholesale and retail markets in Hong Kong are largely
affected by the local economy, despite the continuous lowering
of interest rates, the slacking of building projects has an adverse
effect on our wholesale and retail operations. However, we are
pleased to note that our China operations are largely unaffected;
indeed, with the forthcoming World Expo to be held in Shanghai
next year, we expect the expansion of China economy shall
continue with ample of business opportunities. We are pleased
to note that there is a significant increase in contracts in hand at
31 March 2009 amounting to HK$215 million (2008: HK$145
million) in which approximately 35% (2008: approximately
7%) derived from our activities in China. Prestigious projects we
have been participating and continue into next year include the
Commercial and Hotel complex in Lujiazui, Shanghai, Peak One,
the Latitude, and Vineyard Il in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & # /g 55 & 8 2 #7

Financial Resources and Liquidity

The Group continues to expand its business lines and volume
while maintaining a prudent financial management policy, the
current ratio and quick ratio are 3.18 (2008: 2.35) and 2.03
(2008: 1.61) respectively, while the cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$39.1 million as at 31 March 2009 (2008:
HK$51.7 million). The Group gearing ratio (the ratio of total
liabilities to the sum of total liabilities and owners’ equity)
decreased to 29% as at 31 March 2009 (2008: 39%). The
interest-bearing borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$44.9
million (2008: HK$62.7 million) including trade finance such as
trust receipt loans for imports.

The Group has adopted a prudent hedging policy against foreign
exchange risk on imported products. The borrowing and cash
balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, the
foreign exchange risk in this aspect is insignificant.

People

As at 31 March 2009, our loyal workforce which is a major
ingredient to our successful operation, increased to 147 (2008:
143).

Future Prospects

Keeping the pace with China’s flamboyant economy, extra effort
will be spent in expanding the Group’s operations in China,
by providing value-added services to our customers. We shall
extend our operations in China not only as a supplier of builders’
hardware, but also to include the fitting of our products. Our
operations in Shanghai have been supplying and servicing
prestigious commercial and hotel development projects in the
Region. In the forthcoming years, we expect more revenue will be
generated from our China operations.
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Register office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal
place of business

16th-18th Floors,

First Commercial Building
33 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Company secrefary
IP Fu Wa, Benthony, ACA, CPA

Auditors

Grant Thornfon

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Authorised representatives

TSE Hon Kit, Kevin
IP Fu Wa, Benthony, ACA, CPA

Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office

Tricor Abacus Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands principal
share registrar and
transfer office

Butterfield Fund Services
(Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

Grand Cayman KY1-1107
Cayman Islands

Legal advisers on Cayman
Islands law

Conyers Dill & Pearman, Cayman
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Legal advisers on Hong Kong
law

Pang, Wan & Choi, Solicitors
7th Floor, Chinachem Tower
34-37 Connaught Road, Central
Hong Kong

Principal bankers

- The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

- Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

- Wing Lung Bank Limited

~ Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited

- Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

— Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009.

IPIFJI i\

Principal activities and geographical analysis of
operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing and sale
of architectural builders hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections
and furniture in Hong Kong.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution
to operating profit for the year by principal activity and market is
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 42.

Dividend

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 9 September 2009, a Final
Dividend of HK2.5 cents (2008: HK5 cents) per ordinary share
for the year ended 31 March 2009. If approved by the members,
the Final Dividend will be distributed to members whose name
appear on the principal or branch register of members of the
Company in the Cayman Islands or Hong Kong respectively
(collectively the “Register of Members”) as at the closure of
business on 9 September 2009. The Final Dividend will be paid
on 8 October 2009.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.
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Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 25
to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2009
amounted to HK$82,749,000. Under Section 34 of the
Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium is available for distribution to shareholders, provided
that no distribution shall be paid to shareholders out of the
Company’s share premium unless the Company shall be able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 106.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. YICK Kai Chung

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. #
Mr. WONG Woah, Dominic *
Mr. WAN Sze Chung, Wilson #

Mr. TSE Sun Lung, Alan (retired on 8 September 2008)

# Independent non-executive directors who entered into contracts with the
Company for an initial fixed term of one year and thereafter shall continue
for further successive periods of one year, provided that the Company may
terminate the contracts at the end of each one year period by giving the
other party at least one month’s notice in writing thereof.

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, Mr. YICK Kai Chung, Mr. TSE Hon
Kit, Kevin and Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with Articles
86(3) and 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

(appointed on 8 September 2008)

Directors’ service contracts

Each of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years commencing on 1 March 2000 and continuing
thereafter unless terminated by either party with at least three
months advance notice in writing.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 10 December
2001 and continuing thereafter unless terminated by either party
with at least three months advance notice in writing.
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Directors’ service contracts (cont'd)

Each of Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie and Mr. TSE Hon Kit,
Kevin has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 3 October 2007 and 8
September 2008 and will continue thereafter unless terminated
by either party by three months prior written notice to other party.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the Company
has entered into any service contracts with any member of the
Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the
employer within one year without payment of compensation K)’fher
than statutory compensation)).

Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Connected transactions”
below, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or
holding companies was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisteor at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ benefits from rights to acquire shares or
debentures

Under the terms of the Company’s share option scheme adopted
on 22 March 2000, the board of directors of the Company may,
at their discretion, invite any full-time employees or executive
directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe
for ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company. No options have been granted
to the directors since its adoption. The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited amended the Listing Rules governing sﬁare option
schemes. The new requirements have come into effect from
1 September 2002 and render some of the provisions of the
existing Share Option Scheme no longer applicable.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ inferests in shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2009, the interests and long positions of the
directors, chief executives of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which have been
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and long positions which any
such director or chief executive was taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) and have been recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or which have been notifieci)’ro the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model code contained in the Listing Rules, were
as follows :

i) Long position in shares and underlying shares

Director ¢

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) HETE S A (MEET)
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 2) HETE K4 (MEE2)
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 3) HEL S A (MFEES)
Mr. TSE Sun Lung, Alan (Note 4) BETRE T (MisE4)
Mr. YICK Kai Chung BRREE

Note 1: The interests in shares of the Company is held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are
the beneficiaries.

Note 2 : The interests in shares of the Company is held by New Happy
Times Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries.

Note 3 : The interests in shares of the Company is held by Universal Star
Group Limited. Mr TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and his family are the
beneficiaries.

Note 4 : Mr. TSE Sun Lung, Alan retired as an executive director on 8
September 2008.

EERROREBARD 2ER

R-ZBENFZRA=+—-H KRAES
REETRAESIRESEHBALRA
AR REEMHEELIE(EEREFRY
BRI 226 1)zt - HERG N
BETREERARBARPEXVIE7RE
SO MEAANEADNARBR Iz BENY
R(BRERBEZKIBBHRIZESIE
RTRAEREFARDER 2BERY
B) 5 RAMRE R ARG E 352K 5 AT %
RERAFECECMAZERZAHA
FRELTRAAZ LT RRAESETE
X5 BRETFA(TRETR ) ANE

ARAR

BRI RERHFRMT

i) BELAROGREBROZEAE

Percentage
Personal Corporate of issued
inferest interest  share capital
(EERITHRD
BAEZ KEHG Bifkt
- 13,805,105 5.98%
- 16,467,518 7.13%
- 40,034,804 17.33%
9,473,310 - 4.10%
6,076,674 - 2.63%
BiEE1 @ Fast Way Management Limited 3 & 3% %
1 BELEREEBAZERA -
MiEE2©  New Happy Times Limited# S B35 R % > #
HERERAZHRERZHEA
MiEE3 ©  Universal Star Group Limited#$ B2 E 1D
BEREERAFTHRREAZHA
fizE4 : BFEELECR-ZTNFAANRREHY

TESBM -
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares
(cont’d)
i) Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”)

EESRROREBRG 2ES (#)

ii) Negotiator Consultants Limited

(TNCLD

Number of ordinary shares held

FREERAZHE
Personal Family  Corporate Other
interest interest interest interest Total
Director Ex BEAEE XREHE AF#EE 2 AtE: ay
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 5) 38 %4 (i255) - - - 1 1
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 5) i 4 (Fiz:5) - 1 - 1 1
Note 5: Such share is held by Bache Hill Group Limited (“BHGL"). M{z£5: Bache Hill Group Limited (TBHGLI) %

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or their
associates had, as at 31 March 2009, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors, their spouses or children
under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Executive directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 52, is a founding member of the
Group and the Chairman of the Company. Mr. TSE has over 25
years of experience in the trading of building materials. He is
responsible for the planning of the Group's overall strategies and
the overall management of the Group.

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 50, is the managing director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. Mr. TSE has over 25
years of experience in the trading of building materials and is
responsible for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also
assists in the strategic planning and management of the Group.
He is a brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the
Group.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 42, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 10
December 2001, before his appointment, Mr. Lau was a sales
manager of the Group and is responsible for project sales. He
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist
College) in 1992 with a bachelor of science degree.

Mr. YICK Kai Chung, aged 50, joined the Group in 1979 and
is a director of five subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. YICK has
over 25 years of experience in building materials industry and
is responsible for overseeing major financial statements and
wholesale business of the Group and products sourcing and
technical support.

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie, aged 38, joined the Group
in 2004, is responsible for the management of project sales in
kitchen fittings of the Group. Graduated in 1994 from University
of Toronto, Canada with a major in business administration,
he has over twelve years experience in the industry. Mr. FUNG
is responsible for the development of the Group’s marketing
strategies and sales of kitchen fittings.

EERCREBAEBZERE

HITES
HEELE » 525 AKRBZAIBAERE
RAZER - HEEREENBEZ I EHE

BERLELRR HESLEAEE 2 BER
BMREEEETE-

HMERE 508 ARBZEEHEE
R=—AENFMALEE - HEEREEMN
#45’1%75@%‘@’@25@”“%9 BEAEEZ

EEK - HEETHIAKE 2 KM
%ﬂ&'ﬁﬁ cWNAKEETEHMEREZR
2 o

BBHEE A28 R— A AEENALXE
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DNAHTES - EZTH A EEAEREE
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Biographical details of directors and senior
management (cont'd)

Executive directors (cont'd)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 29, joined the Group in 2004.
Mr. TSE graduated from University of Toronto with a bachelor
degree of Commerce. He is a director of three subsidiaries of the
Company and responsible for internal information technology
development and the marketing of products distributed by the
Group. Mr. TSE is a nephew of TSE Sun Po, Tony, the managing
director of the Group.

Mr. TSE Sun Lung, Alan, aged 42, retired on 8 September
2008, was an executive director of the Company. He joined the
Group in 1990 and is now responsible for project sales and the
marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE Sun
Lung, Alan is a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and Mr. TSE
Sun Po, Tony.

Independent Non-executive directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 January 2000. Mr.
LEUNG holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from
the University of East Asia, Macau (now known as “the University
of Macau”). Mr. LEUNG is a senior practicing director of Wong
Lom Leung & Kwok C.P.A. Ltd.. He is a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of International
Accountants. Mr. LEUNG is an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accounts in England & Wales, the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong, the member of the Macau Society of Certified
Practicing Accounts, the Society of Chinese Accounts & Auditors,
the Chartered Management Institute and the International Institute
of Management. Mr. LEUNG is an Independent Non-executive
Director of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical details of directors and senior
management (cont'd)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont'd)

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972
with honours bachelor’s degree of Social Science in Economics.
He was appointed director and general manager of Hongkong
Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry
Co., ld. until late 1989. He has been actively involved in China
trade and garment industry over the last few years.

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, Wilson, aged 36, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 27 September 2004.
Mr. WAN obtained a Master degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master degree
in Education (Counselling & Guidance) from the Newcastle
University of United Kingdom and a 2nd Bachelor degree in
Chinese Law from Tsinghua University. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. WAN is a director of training and consultancy
firm specialising in corporate and personal training. In addition,
Mr. WAN is also the president of the Institute of Professional
Trainers and Coaches (HK) and the Hong Kong Chapter Leader
of International Coach Federation (USA\).

Senior Management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 52, joined the Group in 1982
and is a director of one subsidiary of the Company. Mr. AU has
over 25 years of experience in the building materials industry and
is responsible for project related sales and marketing activities.

Mr. LO Wai Man, aged 55, joined the Group in 1979. Mr. LO
is a technical director and is responsible for overseeing provision
of technical support for bathroom collections. He has over 25
years of experience in selling building materials and is a licensed
plumber.
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Biographical details of directors and senior
management (cont'd)

Senior management (cont'd)

Mr. CHANG Kai Chuen, Roy, aged 35, joined the Group in
1991. Mr. CHANG is a general manager of project sales
division. He has over 10 years of experience in building materials
industry and is responsible for project sales.

Mr. MAK Lai Man, Eric, aged 42, joined the Group in 1992.
Mr. MAK obtained a diploma certificate in Sociology from
Hong Kong Shue Yan University, formerly Shue Yan College
and a certificated of Organisational Behaviour from Heriot-Watt
University. He has over 10 years experience in building materials
industry. Mr. MAK is a marketing manager of the Group and is
now responsible for project sales in sanitary products.

Ms. LAU Mei Fong, Cherry, aged 37, joined the Group since
1996. Ms LAU is the general manager of the retails shops of
the Group and is in charge of overall shop management. She
has over 10 years of experience in retail business. Ms. LAU is a
sister-in-law of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the managing director of
the Group.
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Substantial shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO of shows that as at 31 March 2009,
the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued

TERR

REXKERBESRSRITRAEBZES
S R-ZZBZAF=RA=1+-HB  REZRK
BIE3HREAEF2ETMAZCEIERRE

share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed T
above in respect of the directors and chief executive.
Long position in shares of the Company HELXRARDZHE
Number of
Ordinary shares
beneficially held
Name of Shareholder BEEE B8 E
Universal Star Group Limited Universal Star Group Limited
(Note 6) (Mf=E6) 40,034,804
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 6) ARG £ (H3E6) 40,034,804
Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited 28,300,465
New Happy Times Limited New Happy Times Limited
(Note 6) (M3E6) 16,467,518
Mtr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 6) WHE L (HEEs) 16,467,518
Fast Way Management Limited Fast Way Management Limited
(Note 6) (H3E6) 13,805,105
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 6) WEE L (HEE6) 13,805,105

Note 6: Messrs. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, TSE Sun Po, Tony and TSE Sun Fat, Henry’s
interests in the Company are represented by Universal Star Group
Limited, New Happy Times Limited and Fast Way Management Limited
respectively.

o IREABBALTBRTRN 5%

Percentage
of Issued
share capital
HER{TRIA
Z Ll

17.33%
17.33%
12.25%

7.13%
7.13%

5.98%
5.98%

Mo : MERLE HHEEXEERFHELELER
D E K% D BB Universal Star Group
Limited + New Happy Times Limited & Fast
Way Management LimitedX & #55 ©
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Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

Maijor suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows :

Purchases

The largest supplier 16%
Five largest suppliers combined 48%
Sales

The largest customer 5%
Five largest customers combined 17%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.

Continuing connected transactions

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 27 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009 in
respect of rental expenses of approximately HK$2,037,000
paid to Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”) also constitutes
a connected party transaction. NCL is a subsidiary of BHGL in
which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, and Mr.
TSE Sun Lung, Alan have beneficial interests. The Stock Exchange
has granted conditional waivers to the Company from strict
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. In the opinion of the directors including the independent
non-executive directors of the Company, the transactions were
conducted in the ordinary course of the business of the Group
and in accordance with the terms of the agreements.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public
Holct of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules.

Auditors

On 1 June 2007, Moores Rowland Mazars changed its name to
Moores Rowland, on the same day, Moores Rowland combined
its business with Grant Thornton. In this connection, the Board

appointed Grant Thornton as auditors of the Company effective
13 September 2007.

Grant Thornton will retire and be eligible to offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to authorise the Board to re-appoint
auditors and to fix their remuneration.

For and on behalf of the Board

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, 3 June 2009
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E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavors to maintain
its high standard of corporate governance, and continues to
review and reinforce its corporate governance measures. The
Company believes that accountability and reporting system
with high transparency for the Company’s operation has been
in place. Disclosure could also be made timely and accurately.
At the same time, the rights of shareholders can be treated and
protected equitably.

The Company is led by an efficient and responsible Board,
which is comprised of individuals with high qualifications and
relevant experience. This can ensure that the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) maintain good corporate governance
practices and have comprehensive internal control systems, so as
to cope with the Group’s development strategies and increase the
shareholders’ value.

The Board has complied with the code provision listed in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2009 with the exception
of the code provision A.4.1. Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
stipulates the code of good corporate governance (the “Code”),
and two levels of recommendations: (a) code provisions; and
(b) recommended best practices. It is also states that issuers
are expected to comply with, but may choose to deviate from,
the code provisions. The recommended best practices are for
guidance only. The Company opted to comply with mandatory
code provisions and provisions on recommended best practices
that are considered by the Board as reasonable and appropriate.
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Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term. Currently, non-executive
directors are not appointed for a specific term of service. This
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1. However, they
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meeting
under the articles of association of the Company. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
sets a required standard against which directors must measure
their conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed
companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
own code of conduct regarding director’s securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the directors have
confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the

Model Code throughout the year ended.
The Board

The Board comprises six executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. The names of the directors
are as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. YICK Kai Chung

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Appointed on 8 September 2008)
Mr. TSE Sun Lung, Alan (Retired on 8 September 2008)
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The Board (cont'd)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P.
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
Mr. WAN Sze Chung, Wilson

Biographies for all directors are listed in Biographical details of
directors and senior management set out on pages 17 to 20.

The Board of the Company assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company and is responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management of
the Company’s relationships with shareholders, ensuring that @
framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable
risks to be assessed and managed, and setting the Company’s
values and standards.

When the Board delegates management and administrative
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitment
on behalf of the Company.

The task of the management and staff of the Company is the
successful implementation of the strategies and directions as
determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.
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The Board (cont'd)

The independent non-executive directors help to ensure that
the Board can make independent judgment efficiently. The
independent non-executive directors possess appropriate
professional qualification among them, some possess expertise
in accounting and financial management. Each independent
non-executive director has confirmed to the Stock Exchange
his independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and has also submitted an annual written confirmation to
the Company confirming his independence. All non-executive
directors are engaged by contract every year and are subject
to retirement in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association. As disclosed in our announcements on 8 September
2008, Mr. TSE Sun Lung, Alan retired as an executive director
with effect from 8 September 2008 and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin
appointed as an executive director on 8 September 2008.

Except as disclosed in the Annual Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

All directors actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies and business directions of the
Group. Throughout the year, the Company held four regular
and seven irregular meetings. To ensure that the directors could
obtain all related information for performing their duties and
responsibilities, documents for the Board meeting were supplied
to directors for their consideration before the meeting according
to the regulations set out in the Listing Rules and code provision.
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The Board (cont'd)

Throughout the year, the Company Director’s attendance was as
follows:

Executive Directors Attendance
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) 11
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director) 11
Mr. YICK Kai Chung 10
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun 10
Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie 10
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin 6
Mr. TSE Sun Lung, Alan 4
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 6
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 6
Mr. WAN Sze Chung, Wilson 6

The Board makes arrangements to provide opportunities for all
directors to include proposed discussion issued in the agenda
of regular Board meetings. At least 14 days notice are given in
respect of regular Board meetings. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notices are given.

Management provides the Board and committees with sufficient,
adequate and timely information which is complete and reliable
and which enables directors to make informed decisions on
matters placed before them, and perform their duties and
responsibilities as the directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable directors
to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the Board
and each director have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management.

Minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and
are available for inspection by any director. Minutes record in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and the
decisions reached.
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The Board (cont'd)

All directors have free access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and that applicable laws and
regulations are complied with. Moreover, all directors may seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances in
the furtherance of their duties and for the associated fees at the
Company’s expenses.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by
holding a Board meeting set up for that purpose pursuant to a
resolution passed in a Board meeting. Only independent non-
executive director who, and whose associates, have no materials
interest in the transaction concerned will be present at such
meeting. Directors concerns must abstain from voting on any
Board resolution and will not be counted in the quorum.

Chairman and Managing Director

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive Officer” set
out in Appendix 23 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated
roles and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat,
Henry, Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the
Board. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible
for the Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director
has been clearly defined and the written terms of reference have
been set.
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Chairman and Managing Director (cont'd)

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(a) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b) Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, discharges its
responsibilities and discusses all key issues in a timely
manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary settles and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf,
taking into account any matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda;

(f) Providing effective communication with Shareholders and that
views of Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a
whole;

(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices and
procedures are in place;

(h) Giving each Director an opportunity to express his views at
Board meetings, encouraging all Directors to fully contribute
to the Board’s affairs and ensuring that the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company; and

(i) Facilitating the effective contribution of all Directors, in
particular Non-executive Directors, and building constructive
relations between Executive and Non-executive Directors.
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Chairman and Managing Director (cont'd)

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board, his
responsibilities are as follows:

(a) Providing leadership for the management;

(b) Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company's
strategies;

(c) Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board;

(d) Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to
enable the Board to monitor the performonce of management;

(e) Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with
its stakeholders;

(f) Putting in place programmes for management development
and succession;

(g) Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper internal controls and systems as well as
disclosure controls and procedures; and

(h) Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated
in writing fo him by the Board.

Board committees

The Board has established two committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference.
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Board committees (cont'd)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors

and one Executive Director. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic.

Roles and function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a) Making recommendations to the Board on policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors, Senior Management
and all other employees of the corporate office and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(b) Determining the remuneration of all Executive Directors and
Senior Management;

(c) Making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the Non-executive Directors;

(d) Reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
by referring to corporate goals and objectives set by the
Board;

(e) Reviewing and approving the compensation payable to
Executive Directors and Senior Management relating to any
loss or termination of their office or appointment to ensure
that such compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms;

(f) Reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that such arrangements are determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms; and

(g) Ensuring no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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Board committees (cont'd)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its
discussion results and recommendations after each meeting
and provides sufficient resource to discharge its duties and is
authorised by the Board to obtain independent legal or other
professional advices.

Throughout the year, the Remuneration Committee met once
to review the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
Senior Management of the Company. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review.

Throughout the year, committee members’ attendance was as
follows:

Remuneration Committee Members Attendance

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 1
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 1
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. TSE Sun Lung, Alan (Executive Director) 1
(Retired on 8 September 2008)

Mr. YICK Kai Chung (Executive Director) 0

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee established on 22 March 2000, and
is currently comprised of three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. LEUNG Kwong
Kin, J.P.
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Board committees (cont'd)
Audit Committee (cont’d)

Roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(1) Handling the relationship between the Company and the
external auditors (include: making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditors, approve remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, handle issues for the
resignation or dismissal of external auditors, review and
monitor the independence and objectivity of the external
auditors and effectiveness of the audit process and develop
and implement policy on the engagement of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services);

(2) Reviewing the financial information of the Company;

(3) Monitoring the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Company.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board on its discussion results
and recommendations after each meeting.

Throughout the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the 2008
annual report and interim report of the Company, discussed the
effectiveness of the internal control with external auditors, and
reviewed the 2009 budget auditing fees.

In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the
annual report for the year ended annual result on 3 June 2009,
and proposed to the Board for their approval.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. Throughout the year, the Audit Committee
met four times. Discussion results and recommendations
have been proposed to the Board for its review, and related
recommendations were adopted by the Board.
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Board committees (cont'd)
Audit Committee (cont’d)

Throughout the year, committee members’ attendance was as
follow:

Attendance

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 4
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Chairman of Audit Committee)

Audit Committee Members

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 4
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung, Wilson 4

(Independent Non-executive Director)

All Directors acknowledge their responsibilities in preparing the

financial statements. As at 31 March 2009, none of the Directors

are aware of any uncertainties relating to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubts upon the Company’s ability

to continue as a going concern. As such, the Directors have

Erepared the Company’s financial statements on a going concern
asis.

Responsibilities of external auditors to the financial statements are
set out in the auditors’ report of the 2009 annual report.

Nomination of Directors

The Board has not established a nomination committee.
According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Board has the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. The Board reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board from time to time and makes
recommendation on the appointment of Directors. During the
year, except as disclosed above, there has been no change to the
members of the Board.
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Remuneration of the auditors

For the year ended 31 March 2009, audit fee paid by the
Company to Grant Thornton (independent auditor of the
Company) was HK$560,000.

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and the Group. The
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on page 39 to 41 of the annual
report.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system for the Group. The system is for the
interests of the shareholders by protecting the shareholders’
investment and the assets of the Group.

For implementing internal control effectively, the Company
reviewed the following five elements for internal control:

(i) Overall control

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation
structure and deployed suitable personnel for the efficient
implementation of policies. Adequate information is also
provided. Executive Directors and the Senior Management
are granted appropriate authority fo execute the strategies,
policies and targets of the Group effectively when risks
are within control. At the same time, the Board and Senior
Management shall communicate the values and code of
conduct of the Company to all the staff, for maintaining
honesty and a high level of morality. In addition, all Directors
actively participate in the affairs of the Board and the work of
all Board Committees.
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(ii) BB Erh

Internal control (cont'd)

(ii) Risk assessment

The Group determines annual operation targets, financial
reporting targets and compliance targets in accordance with
the devegfopment strategies set by the Board. This is fo ensure
that the Group operates within risks that are of tolerate and
reasonable level.

The Company shall review the risks faced by the Group with
external auditors regularly, so as to set a solid base Frc))r the
Board to review the effectiveness of internal control and report
to the shareholders on issues in relation to internal control.

(iii) Control activities

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse
range of policies and procedures, including conducting
reviews ochtucﬂ performance, reviewing of performance
reports, checking information processing in transaction,
performing physical controls, analysing performance
indicators and dividing and segregating duties amongst
different people.

(iv) Information and communication

The Board and Senior Management shall communicate
the importance of control to the staff, enabling the staff to
understand that control must be implemented. The staff shall
regularly report any information related o operation, financial
and regulation to the Board and Senior Management.

The Senior Management shall provide the latest information
on the Group to the Board and the Board Committees
re?[u|cr|y or under material circumstances, in a view to have
sufficient preparation for any risks.

In order to lower risks, the Companr actively communicates
with, and considers opinions from, all external parties, so that
it is able to take appropriate actions in face of risks.

Monitoring

The Company shall continuously assess and properly report
the performance of the internal control system.
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Shareholders’ rights and investors’ relationship

It is the Company’s policies to have open communication and
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure
is a key means to enhance corporate governance standard.
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based
on the information and provide opinions to the Company.
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with
its financial condition, are disclosed in the 2009 annual report
and the Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk.

All registered shareholders shall receive notice of the Annual
General Meeting (the “AGM”) and special general meeting
(together the “Meeting”) by post. The notice of the Meeting
contains an agenda, resolutions proposed and a voting form.
All shareholders, whose shares are registered in the register
of members, are entitled to attend the Meeting. Shareholders
who cannot attend the Meeting can appoint their proxies or the
chairman of the meeting as their proxies by completing the proxy
form enclosed with the notice of the meeting and returning it to
the Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all
resolutions at general meetings shall be decided on a voting by
poll. Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with
the notice of the meeting, have been enclosed with a circular
dispatched to the shareholders. The procedures shall be read out
at the Meeting by the chairman of the meeting.

In addition, separate resolutions for actually separated issues shall
be proposed to the Meeting for the approval of shareholders.

The AGM is considered as an annual significant event of the
Company. The AGM can provide a precious opportunity for the
shareholders and the Board to exchange constructive opinions.
All Directors and the Senior Management shall attend the AGM.
Apart from attending the AGM, the Chairman of the Board shall
arrange the chairmen of each Board Committee to attend and
answer question at the AGM.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT B Y & &M & &

o Grant Thornton
= )

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members
of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of E. Bon
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 42 to 105, which
comprise the consolidated and the Company’s balance sheets as
at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT B Y & &M & &

° GrantThornton
HE

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overalll
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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o Grant Thornton
HE

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at 31 March 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

3 June 2009

2R

ARBMRAR  FERAUBBRRCRES
BUBREZRAEEAFHRREAARE
SER-ZZNFZRA=+-HZHHRR
REKBEEZEZALFEZEANRRER
B UCEREB(RAKRIIZHERATE
REH -

HE ST
HEGITE

B
ERKREFI5E%
BES
HETHREI13R

—EENAERAZH

4" e. bon holdings limited | annual report 2009
BATRERERLAT —BBAEFR



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT & & B # &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-FThE=f=+—-HLEE

2009 2008
ZEThE —EENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiEE F#T FEx
Turnover - 1] 5 361,102 395,285
Cost of sales HERAK (221,973) (244,378)
Gross profit EX 1 139,129 150,907
Other income Hpl s 5 2,330 2,232
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHARA (75,983 (73,740)
Administrative expenses THRX (32,368) (32,604)
Fair value change on derivative fTESRMIA
financial instruments AT EEH 676) 998
Revaluation deficit on building MESERE (112) -
Finance costs B IS & 8 (1,758) (1,217)
Profit before income tax B ERE2H 7 30,562 45,876
Income tax expense FrERiEx 11(a) (5,556) (8,063)
Profit for the year EERF 25,006 37,813
Dividends BE 13 8,085 15,500
Earnings per share for profit attributable RARRAERE ARG
to the equity holders of the Company BRIz BRER
during the year
— Basic —EK 14  10.8 centsi#fll 16.4 centsi{L*
* Restated * E5
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET # e 6 E A B &

As at 31 March 2009 A=EZnE=F=+—H

————— = -

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Property, p|0|n’r and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowings
Provision for tax

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

AERAR
FRDAE
nk - BERAH
B LA ERE
BLHEAE

RORE

FE R BRI H A FE W KR

fTEERMTE
RERREEE

nEBRR

FE A BR AR % HL At B A TR OR

BERE
FEIBLIE

mERERE
REEATDAR

FRBAR
BERRE
EEHIEEE

RERE

2009 2008
—EENE —ZINF

Notes ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
ftax FRT F#T
15 45,734 40,054
16 30,534 -
24 1,627 1,626
77,895 41,680

19 73,469 80,949
20 90,720 123,210
21 322 998
39,110 51,665

203,621 256,822

22 30,579 45,064
23 30,032 60,644
3,501 3,655

64,112 109,363

139,509 147,459

217,404 189,139

23 14,820 2,105
24 3,853 3,685
18,673 5,790

198,731 183,349
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET # & EE & B &

As at 31 March 2009 A=EZnE=F=+—H

2009 2008
t- 13 B3 —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B THET TAERT
EQUITY HE

Equity attributable to Company’s equity holders &4 B FH AR LER
Share capital g 7K 25 23,100 21,000
Reserves ER 26 175,631 162,349
Total equity ganE 198,731 183,349

TSE Sun Po, Tony LAU Shiu Sun
s SR
Director Director

EE EE
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BALANCE SHEET 8 E & & %

As at 31 March 2009 A=EZnE=F=+—H

————— = -

2009 2008
—EThE —EENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E Fi#x TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries (= pNGE £ 17 90,917 90,917
Current assets REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEU [t B A B > 2hE 18 65,262 67,595
Prepayments and other receivables TR R A W e 20 38 25
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLZE 69 68
65,369 67,688
Current liabilities mBRRA
Other payables HippEI 08 22 45 112
Tax paya{ﬂe {5118 119 77
Due to subsidiaries FEAT B A T] > 2hE 18 50,273 40,493
50,437 40,682
Net current assets REEERE 14,932 27,006
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHAR 105,849 117,923
Net assets EERE 105,849 117,923
EQUITY Ea
Share capital AR 7 25 23,100 21,000
Reserves E2 26 82,749 96,923
Total equity PN, 105,849 117,923
TSE Sun Po, Tony LAU Shiu Sun
WWhE SR
Director Director
EF EE
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT &R £

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-FThE=f=+—-HLEE

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Interest expense

Interest income

Provision for slow-moving inventories

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Reversal of provision for doubtful debt

Loss/(Gain) arising from change in fair value of
forward foreign exchange contracts

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Revaluation deficit on building

Depreciation and amortisation

Operating profit before working capital changes:

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories

Decrease/(Increase) in trade and
other receivables

(Decrease)/Increase in trade and
other payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Interest received

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Payment of lease premium for land

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
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2009 2008
—EBBNF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TERT
30,562 45,876
1,758 1,917
(379) (949)
3,334 682
118 438
(3) -
676 (998)
(11) -
112 =
6,801 5,400
42,968 52,366
4,146 (7,848)
32,280 (46,662)
(14,485) 10,541
64,909 8,397
(5,667) (8,357)
59,242 40
379 949
11 =
(31,157) -
(8,583) (6,934)
(39,350) (5,985)




Cash flow from financing activities

Bank loan raised

Interest paid on bank borrowings

Interest paid on obligations under finance lease

Dividends paid

Repayment of other bank loans

Repayment of obligations under finance leases

(Decrease)/Increase in trust receipt loans and
import invoice financing

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,
on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year,

represented by bank balances and cash

MEEDZALTE
HBRTEN
B RITERF
ENBMEHEER
ERNRE
BEHEMBRITER
BEREHERK
BAETKRBERKED
BEERZ(RD) /B0

F‘iﬂﬁ/ﬁ@]iﬁ%(/m )/
/)u,A/%%E

BeRBEZEBEZRYD),/
20
EXgnURes g

IE
=

FNRERREEE

FERZAERREEE
(RITEGREE)

2009 2008
—EThEF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TERT
17,000 9,000
(1,748) (1,907)
(10) (10)
(12,810) (16,000)
(6,930) (977)
(62) (63)
(27,905) 21,524
(32,465) 11,567
(12,573) 5,622
18 65
51,665 45,978
39,110 51,665
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZRe &z 28 %

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-FThE=f=+—-HLEE

- : il
e i "
- B |

Total equity at 1 April

Exchange differences

Gain on revaluation of properties
Deferred tax effect on items recognised
directly in equity

Net income recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expense for the year

Dividends

Total equity at 31 March
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2009 2008
—EBBNF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TEx
183,349 158,327
18 65
3,387 3,669
(219) (525)
3,186 3,209
25,006 37,813
28,192 41,022
(12,810) (16,000)
198,731 183,349




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &t % & & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 &z

___- ‘

e

, @P

1.

“EENF=A=1+—-HLEE

M ‘ ': : '

'E'P-

General information

E. Bon Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins, Drive P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
its principal place of business is 16th — 18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. lts shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
lts subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing and
sale of architectural builders hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture in Hong Kong.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”),
which collective term includes all individual HKFRS, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009
were approved by the board of directors on 3 June 2009.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) have applied, for the first time, the following
new standards, amendments and interpretations (the “new

HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA, which are effective for the
Group's financial statements beginning on 1 April 2008.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

The adoption of these amendments and interpretations had no
material financial impact on the Group’s results and financial
position for the current and prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early adopted the following HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective as at 31 March

2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Stafements!
Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate Financicl

Statements?
HKAS 32, HKAS 39, Puttable Financial Instruments and
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 1 Obligations Arising on Liquidation’
(Amendments)
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HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) and
HKAS 27 (Revised)

Amendment to HKFRS 7
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 (Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) = Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont'd)

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Embedded Derivatives’

Eligible Hedged ltems?
First-fime Adoption of HKFRS®

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or an Associcte!

Share-based Payment-Vesting Condifions
and Cancellations’

Business Combinations and Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements?

Improving Disclosures about Financicl
Instruments’

Operating Segments!

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’

Customer Loyalty Programmes?

Agreements for the Construction of Rel
Estate!

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation”

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners?

Transfer of Assets from Customerss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont'd)

Various Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20087

Various Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

5 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

¢ Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on or after 1
July 2009

7 Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009 unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRSs

8 Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010 unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRSs

Among these new standards and interpretation, HKAS
8 Operating Segments may result in new or amended
disclosures. The Directors are in the progress of identifying
reportable operating segments as defined in HKFRS 8.
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2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont'd)

Amendment to HKAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment affects the presentation of owner changes in
equity and introduces a statement of comprehensive income.
The Group will have the option of presenting items of income
and expenses and components of other comprehensive
income either in a single statement of comprehensive
income with subtotals, or in two separate statements (a
separate income statement followed by a statement of other
comprehensive income). This amendment does not affect the
financial position or results of the Group but will give rise to
additional disclosures. Management is currently assessing the
detailed impact of this amendment on the Group's financial
statements.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact of the other new standards and interpretations but are
not yet in a position to state whether they would have material
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong and derivative financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value as
explained in note 3.4 and 3.6 below.

3.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year.

3.3 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investment in
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss. The
carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis. Results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

All intra-group transactions and balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised profits but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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3. TEEFHE &)
3.4U% BERRE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold
land and buildings in Hong Kong, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation
less accumulated impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives as set
out below from the date on which they are available for
use and after taking into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum. Where parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost
or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
and depreciated separately :

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of
unexpired term of

lease or 50 years

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ depreciation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
the shorter of their expected useful lives or the term of the
leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

3. TEEFHE &)
3.49% BEKRE (&)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

3.4 Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong are stated
at fair value at the date of valuation less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Fair
vaftjje is determined by independent valuations which are
performed periodically. Increases in valuation are credited
to the revaEdeion reserve. Decreases in valuation are first
offset against increases on earlier valuations in respect of
the same asset and are thereafter charged to the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the
income statement up to the amount previously charged
and thereafter to revaluation reserve.

The gain or loss arising on disposal is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

3.5Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are up-front payments to
acquire long-term interests in lessee-occupied properties.
The payments are stated at cost and are amortised over
the period of the lease on a straight line basis to the
income statement.

3.6 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.
A financial asset is derecognised when the Group’s
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or when the Group transfers the contractual
rights to future cash flows to a third party. A financial
liability is derecognised only when the liability is
extinguished.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

3.6 Financial instruments (cont'd)

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including trade and other
receivables, are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market and are not held for trading. They
are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition, over the year to maturity.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or through the amortisation process are
recognised in the income statement.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial
assets are impaired. The impairment loss of financial
assets carried at amortised cost is measured as the
difference between the assets’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flow
discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate.

A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=EThE=F=+—-HLEE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd) 3. TEEHHEE &)
3.6 Financial instruments (cont'd) J6&EMIA(E)
(iii) Finance lease liabilities (i) BEHEE R

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value
less the capital element of lease repayments (see note

3.12).

(iv) Other financial liabilities

The Group's other financial liabilities include accounts
payables, other payables, bank loans and other
borrowings. These financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using effective interest method.

(v) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer of the contract to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder of the contract for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payable at fair value,
where such information is available. Otherwise,
it is recognised at consideration received and
receivable. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher
of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation, and the amount of the provision, if any,
that is required fo settle the commitment at the balance
sheet date.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

3.6 Financial instruments (cont'd)
(vi) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses a derivative financial instrument
that is a forward currency contract to hedge its risk
associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instrument is initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivative are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gain or losses arising from changes is fair value
on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are taken directly to the income statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is
calculated by reference to current forward exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand and short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.8 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably
and on the following basis :

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
time when the goods are delivered to customers and title
has been passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

3. TEEFBR(#)
3.6EMTA(H)

(vi) T LT A

AEBRATEESMIANR -
DEHERSE  HEINEEH
HEzRBETHP - ZEMTE
TRMIAENRKEIITESE
EAZAVEERR  HEED
FTEEBE HNRITEERT
ANAFEEALE  BfTEER®
TEEREEAR  IRAFE
ERE AREEAKR-

AR REEENGT4
SRMIBNATEEREFES
07 Ui 3 S 25 L B AT A SR
R o
BHEEARATEENTES
2B ARNEBANSREH
MERESR -

J7HERREEE

RBeRkATSEERS  RTEXR
AHFERAENERRAE  REFE
EHEEZ2BRAR EHSRBMHR
& o

3.8 R

KBETRAEEAEESEBRNRR
il EL U a8 B2 AR AS (e 38 PR ) BE 40 7T 5
BRITUATHIEERR

HEENMz2WEEMARE AR KR

MEBEER  —REENEREF
KB RER 2EEMER o

MEWAUBBRARTE  ZFHA
Bk

59 e. bon holdings limited ' annual report 2009
BATRERERAT -—BEBAFEFER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

3. TEETHER A

3.9 Foreign currency translation 3.9 KB E

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

On consolidation, the results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows :

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet date;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates;

(c) all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity and recognised in
consolidated income statement on disposal of foreign
operations.
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3. TEETHER A

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

3.10Inventories JEE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.11Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to determine whether
its property, plant and equipment and investment
in subsidiaries have suffered an impairment loss or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-generating
unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately, except where the
relevant asset is carried at valuation in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=EThE=F=+—-HLEE

m
3. TEFHEEK &)
JNEERMEEZRERFE(E)

EBBEGEAZEERRMNREEN
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets (cont'd)

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately, except where the
relevant assets is carried at valuation, in which case the

reversal of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.

3.12 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at the lower of the fair value of the
leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the balance sheet as finance lease obligation.
Finance charges, which represent the difference between
the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the
assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over
the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to
income statement on the straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Lease incentives are recognised
in the income statement as an integral part of the net
consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

3.13Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in the
income statement as incurred. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

3.14Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in
the year in which they are incurred.

3.15Income tax

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
if the deferred tax arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, it is
not accounted for.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

3. TEEFHE &)
3ISEEH (&)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

3.15Income tax (cont'd)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

3.16Related parties

A party is related to the Group if :

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled by, or
is under common control with, the Group; or has an
interest in the Group that gives it significant influence
over the Group; or has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate of the Group;

(c) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;

(d) the portr is a member of the key management
personne of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointl
controlled or significantly influenced by or for whicK
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e); or

(g) the party is a |oost-emp|oyment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

3.17 Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
that segment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between Group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is
based on similar terms as those available to other external
parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire segment assets (both tangible
and intangible) that are expected to be used for more
than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing borrowings, loans, tax
balances, corporate and financing expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

4. EE G HE R

4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 3 to the financial statements,
the management makes various estimates based on past
experience, future expectations and other information.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The key sources affect the amount
recognised in the financial information as disclosed below.

4.1 Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability of the
accounts receivables. A considerable amount of judgment
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of these customers were to deteriorate and
result in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowance will be required. At the balance
sheet date, the carrying amount of receivables after
provision for impairment amounted to HK$66,801,000
(2008: HK$96,313,000).

4.2 Allowance for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the ageing analysis
of inventories at each balance sheet date, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items identified
that are no longer recoverable. From the ninth month,
a 10% provision is made for each successive month,

thereafter until the eighteenth month when the provision
reaches 100%.
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4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates 4. EE 2G5 I R E)

(cont’d)

4.3 Deferred tax assets AJEEREEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax BERIEE ERS u:ﬁi%EHETFHU\
losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable HERRERBERN 2 BH - RIE
profit will be available against which the tax losses ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁDZEEE‘EEZEE
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is HE o TEREFHERRRERD
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets BARARBBRYE - EBRE 2 k5T
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing EEHERN  HESRERRAR G
and level of future taxable profits together with future R BEMEEHRBREERSRIEHIE
tax planning strategies. Management's assessment is EE o

constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

5. Turnover and other income 5. EXERHAMp &
Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods, net of %%%ﬁ?ﬁ%‘ﬁz%?&fﬁﬁ?ﬁ%&?&ﬁ 0
discounts and returns. Turnover and other income recognised FREICEEERAMRENT

during the year are as follows :

2009 2008
“B2hEF —ETN\E
HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT TEx
Turnover Bxm
Sale of goods ERie 361,102 395,285
Other income Htug 2
Interest income FE A 379 949
Others Hith 1,951 1,283
2,330 2,232

363,432 397,517
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

N

6. Segment information . DEE R

PTHERBRAKENEBRBED 2
CEKBOMERMERIERSF

o

N

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's
business and geographical segments. Business segment is )
chosen as the primary reporting format.

Business segments B D EEHR
The Group is organised in Hong Kong into two main business AEEREEEBMAMEIEELESD
segments : B

Wholesale importing and wholesale of architectural builders e EORMBRERS - HA B
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and ERERIELERLSEH
furniture to dealers, traditional hardware stores, APERMERRRS o
contractors and property developers.

Retail sale of architectural builders hardware, TE BRASECSERHHEEESR
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture e A BERBERRA -
through the Group’s retail outlets.

—

=18

2009 2008
“BBhEF —E2N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000

e. bon holdings limited ' annual report 2009
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FTHET FET

Segment results SEHMEE

Segment revenue B S
Wholesale #3 314,580 350,332
Retail s 84,095 85,639
Inter-segment elimination 7 ZP 1K 88 (37,573) (40,686)
Total revenue &34 361,102 395,285

Cost of sales WERE
Wholesale # 3 (218,120 (243,857)
Retail ZE (41,426) (41,207)
Inter-segment elimination 2 EBIE 8 37,573 40,686
Total cost of sales WERESH (221,973) (244,378)



6. Segment information (cont'd)

Business segments (cont'd)

Gross profit
Wholesale
Retail

Total gross profit

Other costs, net of other revenue
Wholesale
Retail

Total other costs, net of other revenue

Segment results
Wholesale
Retail

Total result

Finance costs
Wholesale
Retail

Total finance cost

Total profit before income tax

6. DBAER ()
XBPBEM (&)

7
e 3
ZE

EHSH

Htig& R A il

it B
Z2E

Htigi & MR E & a5t

SHEERN

Heak
&

®FEat
MERA
3

ZE

MERBSH

B SMAAT &5t

2009 2008
—EThEF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ERT TET
96,460 106,475
42,669 44,432
139,129 150,907
(73,044) (72,294)
(33,765) (30,820)
(106,809 (103,114)
23,416 34,181
8,904 13,612
32,320 47,793
(1,426) (1,217)
(332) -
(1,758) (1,917)
30,562 45,876
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

. Segment information (cont'd)

Business segments (cont'd)

Income tax expense
Wholesale
Retail
Unallocated

Total income tax expense

Profit for the year

Capital expenditure
Wholesale
Retail
Unallocated

Total capital expenditure

Depreciation
Wholesale
Retail
Unallocated

Total depreciation

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

PR
e
ZE

FRRAX & &t
FERT

BEixi
He 3

e
*5 8
REHEH A

8
i
e
*AE

HEa

2 EREF ()
B EER(E)
2009 2008
—EBBAF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ERT TEx
(3,778) (6,347)
(1,491) (909)
(287) (807)
(5,556) (8,063)
25,006 37,813
657 304
3,512 6,630
34,948 -
39,117 6,934
1,565 2,199
3,702 3,045
911 156
6,178 5,400




6. Segment information (cont'd)

Business segments (cont'd)

Segment assets SBEE
Wholesale #
Retail i%
Unallocated F)

Total assets BEAs

Segment liabilities SWAR
Wholesale #3
Retail g%
Unallocated P

Total liabilities AESH

Geographical segments

No geographical analysis is provided as less than 10% of the
consolidated turnover and less than 10% of the total assets
and liabilities of the Group are attributable to markets outside
Hong Kong.

#RE (8
B EER(E)
2009 2008
—EThEF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ERT TERT
179,854 236,617
19,431 21,480
82,231 40,405
281,516 298,502
28,483 50,092
1,742 181
52,560 64,880
82,785 115,153
198,731 183,349
it 33 5 B E B

HRAKEREBUIT S 2EXEE
REERAABIRAREEREZ

10% » #3018 it 4t 320 0 47 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

7. Profit before income tax

This is stated after charging/(crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expense

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land lease

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Gain on disposal on property, plant and
equipment

Operating lease charges in respect of
land and building

Provision for inventories,
included in cost of sales

. Finance costs

Finance costs

Interest on bank loans wholly
repayable within five years

Finance charges on obligations
under finance lease
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

7. BRET G AR R
WEB &M, (FFA)THIREE

2 Gl

FERA

e

AN LS

B 5 (W), BRFHE

HENE  BER
RS

BFEBERETH

BRFARERAZ
REFERE

8.

MERA

LFERMERT
EXRFE

BMEHEEHIR

2009 2008
—EBBAF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ERT TEx
560 583
221,973 244,378
6,178 5,400
623 —
(1,583) 1,100
(11) -
27,534 26,615
3,334 682
BHER
2009 2008
-t 1 352 —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TEx
1,748 1,907
10 10
1,758 1,917




9. Employee benefit expense

Salaries and allowances,

including directors’ emoluments (Note 10)
Contributions to defined contribution plans

10.Directors’ and Senior Management’s emoluments

(a) Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amount of emoluments received or
receivable by the directors of the Company are as follows:

2009

Executive Directors
TSE Sun Fat, Henry
TSE Sun Po, Tony
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin#
TSE Sun Lung, Alan*
LAU Shiu Sun
YICK Kai Chun
FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie
Independent Non-executive
Directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P.
WONG Wah, Dominic
WAN Sze Chung

Retired on 8 September 2008
#  Appointed on 8 September 2008

9. EIRAZH

2009 2008
ZETAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx THT
HEeREF
BREESHE (KMEE10) 38,235 37,714
EERKETEIER 1,224 1,147
39,459 38,861
10.EEREREBAEZHE
(o) E= €
RABEBCWREWR 2B € B0
T
—EEBhE
Salaries,

allowances  Retirement

Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contribution Totdl

ek BREHE
EFEHS HhFl2 a3 a5t
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FHExT FExT

HITES
T E - 952 12 964
HEE - 1,018 12 1,030
R - 375 7 382
BRI - 370 5 375
2B 5 - 952 12 964
SRR - 847 12 859
5 R - 1,391 2 1,393
BYKHITES

RNEAFHL 108 - - 108
= 108 - - 108
B B 80 - - 80
296 5,905 62 6,263

REZZZENFAANBEE
tORZBEENFAANBERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

10.Directors’ and Senior Management’'s emoluments 10.EZRSREBAEZH S (8)
(cont’d)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (cont'd) (o) EEM < (&)
2008 LTI
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees in kind  contribution Total
ek BB
EEwe Hfth Rl 3% e &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Executive Directors HITES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry s £ - 993 12 1,005
TSE Sun Po, Tony E Bt - 1,110 12 1,122
TSE Sun Lung, Alan wE - 1,430 12 1,442
WONG Tin Cheung, Ricky ~ &Xx3% - 280 9 289
LAU Shiu Sun 245 = 1,050 12 1,062
YICK Kai Chung 2 RUR = 879 12 891
FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie /= - 1,435 12 1,447
Independent Non-executive B3 /78S
Directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. RRBEAFHL 108 - - 108
WONG Wah, Dominic B 108 - - 108
WAN Sze Chung BEE 80 - - 80
296 7177 81 7,554
No director has waived or agreed to waive their emoluments RBE-ZEZENER-_ZZTNF=ZA
in respect of the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008. ST-BLEFE UEESHEDNR

ERRBEZHE -
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10. Directors’ and Senior Management’s emoluments
(cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include four (2008: four) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2008: one)
individual are as follows:

Basic salaries and allowances BEARFS MR
Retirement scheme contributions BRI R
The emoluments are within e FTIER :

the following bands :

NESRSREEAEZHE (B

(b) AU GREFHMAL

AEBRAFERNRENESHMA
T BENZR(ZEENF  WR)E
= E§$2%éaﬁmvtt2ﬁ
FR-HB—B(ZEENE —F)
ATZHEOT :

2009 2008
—EThEF —EZN\E
HK$’000 HK$'000

FTiERT TR
1,142 1,158

12 12
1,154 1,170

Number of individuals

A
2009 2008
“EENF —EENE
HKS$Nil -HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T 5k LA T - -
HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,00138 7L 1,500,000 7T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-FThE=f=+—-HLEE

11.Income tax expense

(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year. The income tax provision in respect of
operations in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”") and
overseas is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the
estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Current tax

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Current year
Underprovision in prior year

Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax
Current year
Overprovision in prior year

Deferred taxation (Note 24)

Tax expense for the year
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FFEEREA

BERANEH
AEE
EFERETR

REI TSR
AEE
TFBERE

&R IA (FYEE24)
FEERAZH

1. EHEAX

(a) BERAERDBAFE 2 G ERK
BN 216.5%(ZFFNF 1 17.5%)
ZHEE - RPEARKME ([
BRBINEBZRERDAFRZ
T ERRENZERRAEZERER
ZRERBERITEN  RERED

EER

2009 2008

= 1 TE N YL
HKS'000  HK$'000
TR FHT
5,422 6,947

- 94

5,422 7,041
186 224
- ()

5,608 7,256
(52) 807
5,556 8,063




|m il
—

11.Income tax expense (cont'd)

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense

Profit before income tax

Income tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%)

Underprovision in prior year

Tax exempt revenue

Non-deductible expenses

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Unrecognised temporary differences

Unrecognised tax losses

Effect on opening deferred tax balances
resulting from reduction in tax rate

Effect of different tax rate of
a PRC subsidiary

Others

Tax expense for the year

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government
enacted a reduction in the Profits Tax Rate from 17.5% to
16.5% with effect from the year of assessment 2008/2009.
Accordingly, the relevant current and deferred tax liabilities

N FrEHEX (@)
(b) BIEF X 2 H R

The Group
AEE

2009 2008

=t ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FET

BR AT 45 8L A& R 30,562 45,876
g %R?EE;%F)’T SHE16.5%

TN\F 17.5%) & 5,043 8,028
?EE¢¥§§1%T\ - 85
BATHRABA (261) (166)
TAERBENNER 531 151
&2 A LLA0 6 B R TR

BEE (46) (182)
ABRAZEREH (46) 139
AERZBEER 240 -
BETREF ) EERIELEER

-7 92 -
R B ZHEDRFIEH =

ERCEE 42 (37)
Hits (39) 45
FEEREIH 5,556 8,063

EBSRTHRERTHEMAHE2008/2009
ABRFEEML  FBHEMRI7T5%TR
Z£16.5% Bt ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂ& ;i B E

have been calculated using the new tax rate of 16.5%.

BRECRI6.S%ZHBERAHE

77 e. bon holdings limited ' annual report 2009
BATRERERAT -—BEBAFEFER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

12. Profit attributable to equity holders of the 12 KRB RAFZE AEMEEF
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of ARRARAFE AEMEEF736,000%
the Company includes a profit of HK$736,000 (2008: T(=ZEZT/\F :381,00087x) B
HK$381,000) which has been dealt with in the financial RERBBE-ZZANE=ZA=1T—H
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March LFEERBBRRARE
20089.
13. Dividends 13. K&
2009 2008
—EEhF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TERT
Interim dividend of HK 1 cent REARR S SRR BAL
(2008: HK 2.5 cents) per share (ZZZ)\F @ 2.5 B1l) 2,310 5,000
Proposed final dividend of HK 2.5 cents BRA GRS ER2.5 B4l
(2008: HK 5 cents) per share (Note) (ZZBZN\EFE : 5584l) (KzE) 5,775 10,500
8,085 15,500
Note: A final dividend of HK 2.5 cents (2008: HK 5 cents) per share Wi : EEEBCHAERERBRABRES
amounting to HK$5,775,000 (2008: HK$10,500,000) has been W258BUW( ZFBFNE : 5 81)
proposed by the Directors after the balance sheet date. The proposed & 55775000 BER (=B BN\ & :
dividends are not accounted for until it has been approved at the 10,500,000 ) - BEARHKREBRK
Annual General Meeting. REFASGEHERTHAEAR -
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14.Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group's profit for the year of HK$25,006,000 (2008:
HK$37,813,000) and the 231,000,000 ordinary shares in
issue (2008: 231,000,000 shares, restated) during the year.

Diluted earnings per share was not disclosed as there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended 31
March 2009 and 2008.

The number of ordinary shares for both years for the purpose
of basic earnings per shares has been adjusted for the bonus
issue approved pursuant to the annual general meeting held

on 8 September 2008.

The adjustment to comparative earnings per share, arising
from the bonus issue is as follows:

Reported figure before adjustments RERE A
Adjustment arising from the bonus issue BITARZAE
Restated figure BilgE

14.8R&EH

BREXENDRBAFELARR R
7250060008 T (ZEFN\F :
37,813, OOO/EE)&EAirWE%ﬁa
#E1R231,000,000RFAE(=ZFBNF :

231,000,000 - EEU)

BRBE-BENER-_BEAE=F
SRR EECREEER
A B IR MR A -
HEREAENME  ZME2EBR
HEEHRBER-BENEAPNAE
172 18 BB O KB R T AL AR 4
B o

R FAREE 2 SRENL BT
BHT

HK cents
X (Il
18.0
(1.6)

16.4
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

15.Property, plant and equipment
The Group

At 1 April 2007

Cost

Valuafion

Accumuloted depreciation

Net book amount

Net book value

At 1 April 2007
Additions
Revaluation
Depreciation

At 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2008

Cost

Valuation

Accumuloted depreciation

Net book amount
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W-BZtEMA-A
A

ff

ZitfE

REFE

REFE
R-BELEMA-H
ik

Eff

g

R-EEN\F=RA=1-H

15.9%  BEKRE

AEE
Land and
buildings under ~ Land and
long-ferm_buildings under
leasesin ~ long-term Furniture,
Hong Kon leases in Building  Leasehold fixtures and Motor
(Note [uﬁ thePRC  (Note (bﬂ improvements  equipment vehicle Total
RERY
BREEe  BERY
THEEF BORTEC #¥ N fEf
(W) LHRBF  (WEb)  9ERE RERRG AE ait
HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$'O00  HK$'000
THx TER TER THT THx THx Téx
- 1779 - 28,293 14,667 1,634 46,373
21,400 - - - - - 21,400
- (154) - (18,843) (12,502) (1,423) (32,922)
21,400 1,625 - 9 450 2165 211 34,851
21,400 1625 - 9 450 2,165 211 34,851
- - - 6,471 463 - 6,934
3,669 - - - - - 3,609
(669) 36) - (3779 (840) (76) (5,400)
24,400 1,589 - 12,142 1788 135 40,054
- 1,779 - 34,764 15,130 1,634 53,307
24,400 - - - - - 24,400
- (190) - (22622 (13,342) (1,499) (37,653
24,400 1,589 - 12,142 1788 135 40,054



15.Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

15.9% ~ BB R&RE @)

The Group EN =
Land and
buildings under ~ Land and
long-ferm_buildings under
leasesin ~ long-term Furniture,
HongKong ~leasesin Bullding  Leosehold fixtures and Motor
(Note (al) thePRC  (Note (b)) improvements equipment vehicle Totol
RERY
BhREEC.  BERY
ThEEF BORTEL BF #8 fEf
(W) ITHRET (b))  WERE RERRG RE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TEn TEn Thn Tén Tén Tén
Net book value REFE
At 1 April 2008 RZEENERA-A 24,400 1,589 - 12,142 1788 135 40,054
Additions i = = 4414 3,531 434 204 8,583
Revaluation Eff 3,387 - (112) - - - 3,275
Depreciation nE (787) (36) (88) (4,393) (801) (73) (6,178)
At 31 March 2009 R-EENF=A=1-A 27,000 1,553 4214 11,280 1,421 266 45,734
At 31 March 2009 RZSSNFZA=1-H
Cost A - 1,779 - 38,295 15,564 1,710 57,348
Valuation e 27,000 - 4214 - - - 31,214
Accumulated depreciation ~ 23t47% - 226) - (27,015) (14,143) (1,444) (42,828)
Net book amount BESE 27,000 1,553 4214 11,280 1421 266 45,734
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

_ e

- ;
o

15.Property, plant and equipment (cont'd) 15.9% - BERSZE (&)

The Group ZN

(a) The leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong were (o) REBZHRETHRETR-ZZTA
revalued by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent FZRAZ+-HEHABUEEMAER
firm of professional valuers, on 31 March 2009 on market EREHETRTERREAEESE
value basis. Eft o
The carrying amount of the leasehold land and buildings i A& £ i RAEF R R AR ER R
in Hong Kong would have been approximately MERBERBERKS,226,0008 T
HK$3,226,000 (2008: HK$3,307,000) had they (ZZEZNF 3,307,000 7T) °

been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Bank borrowing is secured on building for the carrying (b) RATEEUMEFEER  WEHK
amount of HK$4,214,000 (2008: Nil). The buildings were BE4,214,0008 T (Z2FNEF :
revalued by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent EB) BEVYEEGEMEZGAE
firm of professional valuers, on 31 March 2009 on market TRTERREAEREENER R
value basis. The carrying amount of the building in Hong “EERFZAZST B BUER
Kong would have been approximately HK$4,326,000 RARERZFHERBEGERY
(2008: Nil) had they been stated at cost less accumulated 4,326,000 T (ZZFNE : &) o
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

(c) The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and (c) A&EBEzYE BERREREE
equipment includes an amount of HK$107,000 (2008: BE107,000BT (= BB NF :
HK$161,000) in respect of assets held under finance 161,000 ) AR ERERHEM S
leases. BrEE-
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16.Prepaid land lease payments

Additions
Amortisation

#igtiwEERE
FEHE

At end of the year

REFEZDN

The net book value are analysed as follows

Situated in Hong Kong held under
long-term leases

The amount to be amortised within the next twelve months
after the balance sheet date was HK$623,000 (2008: Nil).

Bank borrowings are secured on the prepaid land lease
payments of HK$30,534,000 (2008: Nil) (Note 23).

AN L EERESR

REMNELNES -
PUARBEOTEAESE

16 BN LB ERE
The Group
F5ME
2009 2008
=t 1 JIE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
31,157 -
(623) -
30,534 -
The Group
F5ME
2009 2008
“BZhE ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FEx
30,534 -
REEREZRRTZER  BHER

56230008 (Z2FNF 1 &) -

BITEENENLHHEER

BERA

FEBEEFENNERSI0,534,000/8 T

(Z2ENF &) (HEE23) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

17.Interest in subsidiaries

2009 2008
“EBZhFE ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FBx
Unlisted shares, at cost FETRSD  BREE 90,917 90,917
Details of the major subsidiaries at the balance sheet date are REEEsHBARESENMT
as follows :
Issued and fully paid up
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital Equity inferest Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment BRfTRERRE/ Legal structure held - and place of operation
HELFIRHR ERSIER WE  ERE EERR ElERsHE FERERERME
Inferest held directly:
EERRNG
E. Bon (BVI) Holdings Limited ~ Brifsh Virgin Islonds 50,000 ordinary shores of Company with limited 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
RERLHE US$1 each ioilifes RERERERR
50,000 RERIZT 2 EBR  AREMAT
Interests held indirectly:
REHREG -
Asia Bon Company Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinory shares of Company with limited 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong
ERGHERERARAT AW HK§1,000 each libiliies NERENLEE
100RER1 0008 T2 EBR ERERLT
E. Bon Buiding Materials Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shores of Company with limited 100%  Imporfing and sale of architectural
Company Limited B HK§1,000 each libiliies builders hardware and bathroom
ATRENHERLT 6,000RER1 00087z EER ARERALT collections in Hong Kong
NERENRHERZIER
Right Century Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shores of Company with limited 100%  Reil of bathroom accessories and
BIERAT B HK$1 each liabilites decoration materials in Hong Kong
1000R8R B 2EBR  ARERLT REREEAZEA RSN
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17.Interest in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Narme of subsidiary
HELRER

Interests held indirectl: (cont'd)

REREER - (R)

Sunny Building and Decoration
Maerials Compony Limited
FHESMNESIAARAR

Shanghai Tech Pro Infernational

Trading Company Lid.

LERREREZERAT

Twinwood Venture Limited

H20 (Pro) Limited
KZBERAT

Massford Holdings Limited

Techpro Trading Limied
BRENEZERAE

Massford {Hong Kong) Limited

XE(BR)RRAT

Ploce of
incorporation/
establishment

ERRIER 5

Hong Kong

PRC
f

Britsh Virgin Islonds
KBEZEE

Hong Kong

Britsh Virgin Islonds
KBEZHE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Issued and fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRBERS/
ifEs

6,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1,000 each

6,000R8MR1,0008 T2 EER

US$300,000
300,000 7

1 ordinary share of USS1 each

IRERI X2 EER

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

WER BT EBR

1 ordinary share of US§1 each

IREBRI X2 EER

1,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

100085187 2 EBR
10,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

10,000R8R1 E < EBR

17 .M B 1 Bl a2 (4)

Legal structure
RN

Company with imited
libiliies
ERERAR

Wholly foreign owned
enferprise

2HELR

Company with imited
liiliies
EREHAT
Company with imited
iabiltes
EREHAR
Company with imited
libiliies
ERERAR
Company with imited
libiliies
BREFLT
Company with limited
iabilifies
BRERLT

Equity inferest
held
EishEa

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activifies
and place of operation

FERBRERME

Retail of architectural builders
hardware and bathroom
collecfions in Hong Kong

REBEEREREREARE

Importing and sole of architecturcl
builders hardware and
bathroom collections in the PRC

RYBENRBERERER
fiaRE

Invesfment holding in Hong Kong

REREREER

Importing and sale of bathroom
collections in Hong Kong

WERENRUEEARE

Invesfment holding in Hong Kong

REREREER

Importing and scle of architectural

builders
REBEORBERETS

Supplying architectural builders
hardware and bathroom colections
for property development in
Hong Kong

NEBHERETSREARE
FH¥3RER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=EThE=F=+—-HLEE

17.Interest in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Issued and fully paid up
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered capital Equity inferest Principal activities
Name of subsidiary establishment BEfTRERRE/ Legal structure held - and place of operation
HELFIRHR EMSIER 4% ERES BERR ElERslE FERBRERME
Interests held indirectl: (cont'd)
REHRER - (R)
Bonco ronmongery Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Company with imited 100%  Importing ond sale of architectural
RELEENERAT BB HKS1 each libiliies builders hardware in Hong Kong
10000RER1 BTz EBR  AREMRLT WEREDREERSTS
Kitchen [Pro Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of Company with imited 100%  Importing and scle of kitchen fffings
BZRERAH £ HKS1 each libiliies in Hong Kong
1000RER1 B2 EBR  ARERLT WEREDRHERER R
D.LY. Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100%  Hondling of the human resources
B HK§100 each libiliies plonning and development
BERI00ET 2 EER BRERLR acfvies of the Group
REAREANERSE
Sanfield Properies Limited Hong Kong 2ordinary shares of HKS1 each  Company with limited 100%  Properly holding in the PRC
FEEXRRLT 3 RERIET 2 EBR liabilifes RAEENREE
ERERLT
Tech Pro (Ching] Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each ~ Company with limited 100%  Investment holding in he PRC
BR (7E) BRAT B MMBRIERZEER liiliies ReBERERR
ERERLT
Bonlex Properties Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Compony with limited 100%  Properly holding in the PRC
AREXRRLT 3 HKS1 each libiliies e IESEL
10000kER BncEBR  ARELAR

18.Due from/(to) subsidiaries 18. FEW (fF) KB D B 2 5K 1B

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable UREARER EANERRBEHE
on demand. Mo
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19.Inventories

2009 2008
ZEENE —ETN\E
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Fi#x FHT
Finished goods ERS 73,469 80,949
20.Trade and other receivables 20.FE g EE i 2 H At FE U R
Details of the trade and other receivables as at 31 March S ENE=ZRA=T-HEKREKR
2009 are listed below : &E{&J‘EU& RBERMT :
The Group The Company
*5E b, /N
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE —EBE)N\F ZEEAE —ZTENF
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
THET FE T THET TET
Trade receivables JE Uy BE 2% 67,815 97,212 - -
Less: provision for doubtful W RERE
debts (1,014) (899) - -
66,801 96,313 - -
Other receivables, deposits and  H 1t fE Llﬁl TR
prepayments SEANETe! 23919 26,897 38 25
90,720 123,210 38 25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

20.Trade and other receivables (cont'd) 20. FEWBR T R H A B LR B (@)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of provision for BUWERR (NBRRREE) 2R D00
doubtful debts) at the balance sheet date is as follows: T
The Group
F5H
2009 2008
—¥ThE —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TExT
0 - 30 days DSR=+H 17,393 61,130
31 - 60 days =+t—HZEXTH 13,070 9,280
61 - 90 days At—Zht+H 9,811 5,633
Over 90 days BBht+H 26,527 20,270
66,801 96,313
The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 AEEZHEFERABHH30E90
to 90 days. In some cases, customers may be granted an B EAHOEFNEEHERE20
extended credit period of up to 120 days. Certain balances B BHBBATAERRUEARAM
over 90 days are on letter of credit or document against RREXET o
payment.
The movement in the provision for impairment of trade FREBERRREELHOT
receivables is as follows :
The Group
*5E
2009 2008

—EThEF —EZN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx THET

Balance at 1 April RUA—B&H 899 461

Provision for impairment loss charged to ERAREEE 118 438
the income statement

Impairment loss reversed HEEER R (3) -

Balance at 31 March R=ZB=+-Rp&HE 1,014 899
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20.Trade and other receivables (cont'd)

At each balance sheet date of the Group reviews receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and
collective basis. As at 31 March 2009, the trade receivables,
individually impaired, due from customers who experienced
financial difficulties that were in default or delinquency of
payments amounted to HK$1,014,000 (2008: HK$ 899,000)
have been fully provided for.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not impaired
is as follows :

|m il
—

20.

Neither past due nor impaired REBSARE

1 - 30 days past due A% -308
— 60 days past due BH%31-60H
- 90 days past due BH%61-90H

Over 91 days past due BEEBIA

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
a wide range of customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are expected to be fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RIE (48)

J%H&EE &Eﬂﬂﬁ?ﬁﬂ&

R& &  REBEUER RBETS
%EEH&EE TR EERS - R=ZFEAN

FZR=1t-H FAEECARURKRN
F21,014,00078 7t B 8 51 & F 8 BUR

REHEBNARERZBEERE(ZF
ZN\F 899,000 T) °
BREFEEZRRANEZRRD M
ﬂﬂT
The Group
KM
2009 2008
—2ZhE ZEINE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
40,274 76,043
5,448 5,406
4,406 1,946
4,278 1,477
12,395 11,441
66,801 96,313
EEHERMEHHEZBRTIERAESE
THEHAKRBARFERTHZEF ° 1
BBERKR AREBZERNEZRE

EEZXVESAZY BHEGTZHWN
@ BHUEEEREZEEBEAFL
BERE AKREYERZTEHRER
EAERm o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=EThE=F=+—-HLEE

21.Derivative financial instruments

Forward currency contracts EHERSRE

This forward currency contract did not meet the criteria for hedge

accounting. The change in the fair value of this non-hedging
currency derivative of loss of HK$676,000 (2008: profit of

HK$998,000) was charged to the income statement during the
year.

22.Trade and other payables

Trade payables A3 BR X
Accrued charges and HthpE {08
other payables

e. bon holdings limited ' annual report 2009
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21 TEEMI A

The Group
E5E
2009 2008
“EBAE  —ZI)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FEr
322 998

WEHEBSRITHEHAEHER
o WFUPEBTETANLATFEE
ZBERER676,0008 TEHAARE
EFNBEXRA(ZZZTNEF  E7H998,000

BIT) o
2ENRRREMENRE
The Group The Company
£ 3 3 | 3/

2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAFE —ZTN\E ZBEAE —ZIN\HE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TERT FTiEx TR
16,641 30,532 — -

13,938 14,532 45 112
30,579 45,064 45 112




22.Trade and other payables (cont'd) 22. B Y BR AR H At JB Y RRE ()

Included in the trade and other payables of the Group are BREENRIARHEMGESRIAANZE

trade payables with the following ageing analysis : FERMERE DATAT

The Group
KEE
2009 2008
—EIhE —EENE
HK$'000 HK$’000
THT FET
0 - 30 days PR=+H 12,663 23,072
— 40 e =t_AZEA+A 1,848 3776
- 90 days AT—ZAtH 920 2,823
Over 90 days BBA+HE 1,210 861
16,641 30,532
23.Inferest-bearing borrowings 23 BEEE
The Group
AEE

2009 2008
“EThE —E2ENF
HK$'000 HK$’000
F#Ex TERT
Bill payables and trust receipt loans, unsecured ERZEREFKIEES - BT 26,697 54,602
Other bank loans, unsecured HtbEIEH 2 SBITER 2,037 8,023
Other bank loan, secured HthBE B2 BITER 16,056 -
Obligation under finance leases MEHEBER 62 124
44,852 62,749
Current portion BN R 2045 30,032 60,644
Non-current portion FRENER R 42 14,820 2,105
44,852 62,749
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

23. In’rerest-beoring borrowings (cont'd)

All bills payables and trust receipt loans are wholly repayable

within one year.

The bills payables and trust receipt loans are denominated in
functional currencies of the relevant group entities and carry
at effective interest rate at 3.8% p.a. Other bank loans bear
interest at prime rate minus 2% p.a. and HIBOR plus 0.6% p.a..

At 31 March 2009, the interest-bearing borrowings of the

Group were repayable as follows :

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth year inclusive
After the fifth year

Wholly repayable within 5 years
Less: Portion due within one year under
current liabilities

Portion due over one year under
non-current liabilities
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.EEBEE@

FEENEERGEXTRBEERER —F
RNEBEE

BNRBERETRBEERUEEREREZ
hHER2ERENERR3.8%  HiR
TERNEFHAREENRR2%KE
EFEM0.6%EE -
BE-_ZEAEF=ZR=+-BXEEA
BEZRERENT :

The Group
FKE
2009 2008
S ZEENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRxT TER
—&RK 30,032 60,644
E-ER 1,264 2,097
F-FEELF(BEBEEMF) 3,851 8
AELE 9,705 -
LEREBERES 44,852 62,749
B AR-FREEZ
RBEE (30,032) (60,644)
R-—FEEEEZFRBEE
14,820 2,105




S

1]

23. Interest-bearing borrowings (cont'd) .EEBEE@
Obligations under finance leases: MEHEE
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
mEHER mEHERZHE

2009 2008 2009 2008
“BBNE —TT)\F ZBBAFE —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TET F#ERT TERT

Amount payable: EEE
Within one year —FR 62 73 54 63
In the second to fifth BE_FERERF

years inclusive (BEEEMTF) 9 /70 8 el

71 143 62 124

Future finance charges ARBEER (9) (19) - -
Present value of HEREBRE

lease obligations 62 124 62 124
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=FThE=f=+—-HLEE

24.Deferred taxation 24 EFERLTE
The major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the KEBRAEEREEDN>IEEL
Group and movements thereon during the current and prior NIEAGEREERHEEHNT
year are as follows :
Accelerated tax Revaluation of
depreciation properties Total
Deferred tax liabilities BEREER ZHREBHRE MEER &t

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEAE CTT)\E ZBEAE _TT\E ZBBAE "ITINF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T#ET TET THET FET THET TET

Atbeginning of the year ~ E34:84 51 64 3,634 3,109 3,685 3,173
Charged to equity Y £ - - 219 525 219 525
Credited fo income FABRR
statement (51) (13) - - (51) (13)
At balance sheet date ERER - 51 3,853 3,634 3,853 3,685
Tax losses Others Total
Deferred tax assets BERERE REGR Hith L

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“BEAE CET)\E ZBEAE _TT\E ZBBAE _TINF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TR THET FER THET TET

At beginning of the year & 3] £5 84 - 888 1,626 1,558 1,626 2,446
(Charged)/Credited to (nE),/

income statement FFABRK - (888) 1 68 ] (820)
At balance sheet date ERER - - 1,627 1,626 1,627 1,626
At the balance sheet date, the Group has not recognised ReEEr  NEEMRDH B HHEE
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of B EBEER EEELNA,151,000%
HK$4,151,000 (2008: HK$2,453,000) as it is not probable T(=ZEENFE : 2453000 %) )3
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be AR AR RN LB EE AT
utilised will be avaif;bb in the relevant tax jurisdiction and EEET AR TR EE BN ERR S
entity. The tax losses have no expiry date under current tax Flo REBEREEN ZZBEER
legislation. REBHA o
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24.Deferred taxation (cont'd) 24 EFERLITE (&)

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries, for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised, is assessed to be immaterial (2008: Nil).
No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position fo control
the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

REEER AEARDBEENOHERE
E(EERBAEARAER)INEHLFE
R(ZZENF  E) BHRAKEESN
EHMBRARNKERE MZERE
AEGFHERTERED - HEELES
BIRBHER

25.Share capital 25. 7K
2009 2008
—EENF —EENE
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000

KB E THET k&8 TER
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each  SREME0. 1B T2 EER
At 1 April and 31 March REA-BR=R=+-H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRARMR:
Ordinary share at HK$0.1 each SRAG0IETZLER
A1 April REA-A 210,000,000 21,000 200,000,000 20,000
Bonus issue of share (nofe) AR (PEE) 21,000,000 2,100 10,000,000 1,000
At 31 March R=ZBA=+-H 231,000,000 23,100 210,000,000 21,000

Note: Pursuant to the annual general meeting held on 8 September 2008,
bonus issue of shares on the basis of one share for every ten shares
held was approved. 21,000,000 bonus shares were issued under
the bonus issue and the amount HK$2,100,000 was capitalised from
the Company’s share premium account.

The bonus shares were credited as fully paid and rank pari
passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

Wi REALAR-BENFNANBETL
RERBFAE CHERSHATRRHA
TE—RAFRG 2 BERTARARE -
i # It 217 21,000,000 RAF R - M
2,100,000 B BAR ARG RERREA
B -

BEANBHC ARIMFHAR  LERE

HeREROESHTEANEZRASER

3¢
& °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &t % & & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-FThE=f=+—-HLEE

26.Reserves 26 .11k
The Group AEE
Share Revaluation ~ Merger  Capital Exchange Retained
premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings  Tofal

RiAR EMARE SHEE RFRE ERRE HEZEN it
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000

TEér TERr TER TER TER TER  TEx

A1 April 2007 RZEZ+tENA—H 41,261 15,842 6,979 2,896 232 71,117 138,327
Capitalisation on bonus issue BOTAR

of shares (1,000) - - - - - (1,000)
Exchange differences EREH - S - - 65 - 65
Gain on revaluation of properties  #1% B4 I3 - 3,669 - - - - 3,669
Deferred tax effect on items EEBARNES

recognised directly in equity ELHE - (525) - - - - (525)
Dividends RE = = = = - (16,000) (16,000)
Profit for the year EERF - = = - - 37813 37813
At 31 March 2008 R-ZENE

=H=t-H 40,261 18,986 6,979 2,896 297 92,930 162,349

At 1 April 2008 RZZEENEMA-A 40,261 18,986 6,979 2,896 297 92,930 162,349
Copitalisation on bonus issve #4741

of shares (2,100) - - - - - (2,100)
Exchange differences EXEH - S - - 18 - 18
Gain on revaluation of properties  #1% B3 - 3387 - - - - 3387
Deferred tax effect on items HEERINERZ

recognised directly in equity EERE - (219) - - - - (219)
Dividends ®E - - - - - (12,810) (12,810)
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - 25006 25006
At 31 March 2009 R-BENE

=ZR=+-H 38,161 22,154 6,979 2,896 315 105,126 175,631
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26.Reserves (cont'd)

The Company

At 1 April 2007

Capitalisation on bonus issue of shares
Profit for the year
Dividends

At 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008

Capitalisation on bonus issue of shares
Profit for the year
Dividends

At 31 March 2009

26.

R-ZEZLtFNA—H
BITAR

FERR

B E

RZBENEZA=+-HK
R-ZZEENFNE—H

BATALIR

FEBA

fRE

AZEBAFE=A=+—H

fi 8 ()
ENNS
Share Retained
premium  earnings Totdl
BipRE RERH &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TR
110,078 3,464 113,542

(1,000) - (1,000)
- 381 381
(16,000) - (16,000)

93,078 3,845 96,923

(2,100) - (2,100)
= 736 736
(12,810) - (12,810)

78,168 4,581 82,749
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

27 .Related party transactions

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group had the following transactions with related parties:

27.BEALRG

BRRAMBEREHMBOREZR S/
BRI AEEEAHEEALTBRENTN
TR

Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2009 2008
HREATRE RHHHE —EThE —ETN\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TEx
Key management personnel, including directors Short-term employee benefits
IZEBAS(BEESR) EHETEA 6,717 7,554
A company under common control by the Rental expenses paid fo Negotiator
directors of the Company (note) Consultants Limited (“NCL”)
—BARAZERAATNES (M) 784 % ¢ Negotiator Consultants
Limited (“NCL") 2,037 2,952

Note: NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun
Po, Tony, and Mr. TSE Sun Lung, Alan have beneficial interests. The
rental expenses paid were in the normal course of business at terms
mutually agreed between the Group and NCL.

28.Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease ponen’rs under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of land and buildings are as follows:

28.

et BWHEALE WHELERFHELER
NCLHER R - EAREBTEALE
ENCLEMZENRAZAHEE -

R HERIE

REEH  2AEERBEFAUHE Lt
FEFEEHEMRARI S 2HER
ENFBAENT

The Group ZN 3
2009 2008
—FThF —EZN\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FEx THET
Within one year —&£R 24,905 19,129
In the second to fifth years inclusive FoEZERFRN(BRERWE) 13,480 6,993
38,385 26,122

The Company NN

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no significant
operating lease commitments (2008: Nil).
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29.Capital commitments

The Group

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERR

Authorised but not contracted for

The Company

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no significant
capital commitments (2008: Nil).

30. Contingent liabilities

The Group

In August 2001, a subsidiary of the Company (“the
Subsidiary”) sued one of its customers (“the Defendant”) for
recovery of an amount of approximately HK$5,333,000
in respect of goods sold and delivered to the Defendant. In
September 2001, the Defendant filed a counter-claim in a
sum of approximately HK$6,148,000 against the Subsidiary
for the alleged losses and damages as a result of the alleged
breach of the supply agreement entered into between the
Defendant and the Subsidiary. The case is now in the stage
where the parties’ expert reports are to be exchanged and
the directors of the Company, on the basis of independent
legal advice obtained, consider the Subsidiary has a good
arguable case against the Defendant for the counter-claim
and accordingly no provision in respect of the debt due or the
amount of the counter-claim has been made in the financial
statements of the Group.

29.

% e

EHEEBARET A

30.

EYE
rEE
REEEAEE 2 EREENT:
2009 2008
ZEEnEF —EENE
HKS$’000 HK$'000
TFHETT FTET
- 34,200,000
VNN
REEH  ARAUEREERERKIE
(ZBEBNE : &) o
FAREE
AEE

—EE-FN\R ARAZ-ZHWED
A(ZMEBAE ) BF—BFF ([HW
H) BREERINTFREZEREH
#5,333,0008 T - WER-ZZ—F
NWAREREREZMBAT L2 ®
BHREBEEZBARBEEQAZANE
ARRHEEFK6,148,000/ T2 R H#
RoUFARHESBRERRERKE - X
LREESREMEBLEREER  RA
ZHBLAARBEZRRREBRES -
AUt ERRRRAENSEERAEE
fRE REH B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

30. Contingent liabilities (cont'd)

31.

The Company

At 31 March 2009, the Company had executed corporate
guarantees to secure general banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries. Facilities utilised by the subsidiaries amounted
to HK$45,000,000 (2008: HK$63,000,000) as at 31 March
2009.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, trade and other payables, cash and short-term
deposits, interest-bearing borrowings and derivative financial
instruments. Details of the policies on how to mitigate the
risks from these financial instruments are set out below. The
Group’s management manages and monitors these exposures
fo ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

30./AEE (&)

31

ARF

RZZEZEANFZRA=1t—-H A2 F
RETHBLARAREARTREFT
RAER R-ZFEZNF=ZRA=1—
H - MEBRAICHEAZRITEREEH
£ 450000008 L (ZFFE N\ F :
63,000,000/87T) °

MEEREEANRBER

AEETESHIAGRBERERN &
NRAREMESRE  RERERE
FREERE -FHEENLAEHMIA
SIENERBEIENT - XEEEE
BEEBREX GRS LARR  XHE
BENHEBER -
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31.Financial risk management objectives and policies 3. MBRBERER N REE @)

(cont’d)

Categories of financial instruments PREMTA
The Group
F5RE
2009 2008
“EBhE¥ ZEENE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERx THET
Financial assets MBERE
Loans and receivables ERKELE
Trade receivables AN 66,801 96,313
Bank and cash balances BeRELZE 39,110 51,665
Derivative financial instruments TTEERMIA 322 998
106,233 148,976
Financial liabilities MBAR
Financial liabilities measured ot amortised costs Ll ssm A& 8 2 BB EE
Trade and other payables FEfS IR R HL A RS X8 30,579 45,064
Interest-bearing borrowings BEEGE 44,852 62,749
75,431 107,813
Interest rate risk = EL k2
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the ARAEELREEREEMHEEE
Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially HARENUAREEESBIRNDS
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s Fzgs AEENFZEABEIESAR
interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings such as EHESN: EREE . S#aRAEE
bills payable, borrowings and finance lease arrangements. BEE - EENZNBIHFER  £H
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash EHRERENERRE - HEFENH
flow inferest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose EEFZ  AEBEYLTAHREE o

the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

31.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(cont’d)

Interest rate risk (cont'd)

At 31 March 2009, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit after tax and retained earnings by approximately
HK$224,000 (2008: HK$314,000). The 50 basis point
increase/decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most of the
sales transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars. However,
foreign currencies are required to settle the Group’s purchases
from overseas suppliers. The Group enters into derivatives
transactions, principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the Group’s
operations.

At 31 March 2009, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 10% in Euro dollar rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's profit
after tax and retained earnings by approximately HK$32,200
(2008: HK$99,800). The 10% increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in foreign currency rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date.

3 B RBEER M REBUR (&)

MRE R (&)

R-ZBEARF=ZA=+—-B  ®FEHR
FEMBRESTEZERT BNEX
EFRTHOEESSAEEANEF
REABARRERBANR D HEMH
224,000 T (=ZFZT/\F : 314,000
)  SOREMEFHTIERARER
BHEEET - SELAEENAETHE
EREE -

M | B

AEEETEREREE  HABHOX
SEEUBRHE  E@EBIMER
BENRBRERNE - AEETES
N ITERAEHEWESN  UEEEER
BEEZMNERR -

R-ZZBEAE=ZA=1+—-0  B&RFME
HthaJ2RETFE BaNEAE B
B10% XEERBREBARRERA
BERD /2N32,2008T(ZEEN
F:99,8008 ) 10%WAESEE
REEEBIGEZET-EELEAN
BETEENEESE o
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31.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(cont’d)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables. Cash and cash
equivalents are deposited with banks in which these financial
institutions normally have sound credit rating and the Group
considers the credit risk to be insignificant.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The general credit terms allowed range from 30 to 90 days.
As at the balance sheet date, the Group does not hold
any collateral from customers and the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 4% (2008: 2%) of the total
trade and other receivables was due from the Group’s largest

customer and 14% from the five largest customers of the
Group as at 31 March 2009 (2008: 32%).

Hence, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables in the consolidated balance sheet. The
Group has no other financial assets which carrying significant
exposure to credit risk. The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

.E R EIE B B R EUR (#)

FERR

AEEZGFERBRIEARERRESE
B -BERRREGERRBAR - B
EREEEEREERRABREEE
AREAEERRFERBIAZERH
®is -

AEBREEIBARBEENEFRXR
% MAEERGEEENEFFETRE
AffeME  AREEEHRRAREE
RAERWRESRZEF » WILREK
R FEK -

AEEETZEEH-RNFI0EE0
H-REER FAEBLTEREEFZ
BE MAKBRETREZETREE
Bl REEER-ZTAF=A=1-
HEZREMBRRERD R BE4%(=
EENF I 2%)RI4AB(ZFZBNEF
32%) REAXAEERARAEREF °

Bt RESEERERY  RS5FE
ERARSRREEEY E5NRHM
BWHEZREAE FAEELTEE S
MEEMTEAGEERR - AKELE
REAMEFAKEARFERMBZA
AER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #% & & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-ZThE=f=+—-HLEE

31.Financial risk management objectives and policies 3. MBRBERER N REE @)

(cont’d)
Liquidity risk REBE Tk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEEERBFAARGTESX  RITME
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank B MEHEE RELSEEM-
overdrafts, bank loans, and finance leases.
As at 31 March 2009 and 2008, the remaining contractual R-ZBENER-ZTEENE=ZA=1—
maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on B AEERBRAREARSRENHT
undiscounted cash flows, are summarised below: EHNEIMACHEEERENT ¢
Within In the
Carrying  1yearor In the thirdto  Affer the
amount ondemand second year  fifth years  fifth year
BN B RE=F
BmE —£R BIHER ERLFER  AFLE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Fign FiEn TiEx Fign FiEn
As at 31 March 2009 R-BBAF=A=+-H
Trade and other payables FERERR LA EE 30,579 30,579 - - -
Interest-bearing borrowings BEEE 44,852 30,032 1,290 4,015 10,333
As at 31 March 2008 R=BENE=A=1-H
Trade and other payables PR EN HL B {4 2508 45,064 45,064 - - -
Interest-bearing borrowings EE£E 62,749 60,644 2,097 8 -
Fair value A¥E
All significant financial instruments are carried at amounts Ezﬁgﬁijﬁl;i ; ii%g; %E %%
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 March BEATEOmE A5 -

2009 and 2008.
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32. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

- to safeguard the Group’s ability fo continue as a going
concern, so that is continued to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

— to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

— to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder return, taking info consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing
and projected profitability and projected operating cash
flows. The Group currently has not adopted any formal
dividend policy.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to equity
ratio. This ratio is defined and calculated by the Group as
total interest-bearing borrowing to the owners-equity, at 31
March 2009 was 23% compared to 34% at 31 March 2008.

NEXEHE

AEEEEERZERR

- REAEEREANFTELSE  tWMEE
ABRREEOREAE R ZHEE
ERFE

- XBEAREZRERER K

- REEX BAFEEzEREERRE
5 o

FEERBTEARNREREEARE
NDREIGREEZEARERRRE
HRNBEPEEZEZAAKERE
REXRER FEERKILERANEM
EXREBE -

AEBUEAGBURRERER 2K
BoUMEXDUAEEREEERER
NEEREFNE REFER KRB
23%(ZZ2B\F 1 34%) °
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY T & BB E

For the year ended 31 March 2009 #Z=-FThE=f=+—-HLEE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EEAE —STT\F -ZTTLE —TTAF —ZTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FRT  TET  TEx  TEx  TEx

Results E
Profit attributable

to shareholders AR 3R A S A 25,006 37,813 25,779 11,985 10,175
Assets and liabilities HERAE
Total assets B 281,516 298,502 233,154 196,417 156,854
Total liabilities FER=E (82,785) (115,153) (74,827) (53,654) (24,006)
Shareholders’ funds BREES 198,731 183,349 158,327 142,763 132,848

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the BE-ZZNFZAZ+-RALAEEEER
five years ended 31 March 2009 have been prepared on a ZEBE BEEREEBNRGEEEMBER -

consolidated basis.
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